
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

July 15, 2014 5:15 pm 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt 
 

3. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
A) Bill Thomas request to speak to Council regarding the Consent Agenda 

 
4. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 07-01-2014 Council Minutes  

B) Consideration of a Motion to approve an Outdoor Event Permit: 
a) Applicant's Name: Jon Starkey 

                  Date and Time of Event:  August 23, 2014, 5:00 p.m. 
                     Location of Event: University Plaza 
                      Type of Event: Outside Gathering with Band and DJ 
                      Products Served:  Beer, Wine & Liquor 
 

5.  A Public Hearing and Consideration of Application V 14-06-01:  Polestar Development, 
LLC requests a variance from Article X, Section 1003 (D) side building setback line and 
(E) regarding the required 20' separation between commercial buildings for the property 
located at 349 Brampton Avenue (Tax Parcel #MS74000198A007). 
 

6. Consideration of a motion for the purchase of one New Way front load refuse body with 
compressed natural gas (CNG) system in the amount of $130,253.55 via 
price extension from the previous award approved by city council on April 16, 2013. 
 

7. Consideration of a motion for the purchase of one compressed natural gas 
(CNG) powered refuse cab and chassis to Peach State Trucks in the amount of 
$143,180.00 via price extension from the previous award approved by city council on 
April 16, 2013 
 

8. Consideration of a Motion to Approve a Professional Engineering Services Contract to 
Hussey, Gay, Bell & DeYoung, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $63,562.00 for the 
design, survey and permitting services for the water main replacement on Savannah 
Avenue between East Main Street and Gentilly Road.  Funding will be from 2013 
SPLOST proceeds. 
 

9. Consideration of a motion to approve a Microsoft License Agreement on state contract 
with Dell Computer Corporation. 
 
 



 
 

 
 

10. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Mayor to sign a Memorandum of 
Understanding and Resolution 2014-25 in support of an application for a Georgia 
Department of Economic Development Tourism Agreement Grant to benefit the 
Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau in the promotion of Statesboro area history 
and culture at the new SCVB facility. 

 
11. Council Notification regarding letter of support given by the City of Statesboro in regards 

to the One Georgia Authority grant application being submitted by the Development 
Authority of Bulloch County, Ogeechee Technical College, and Georgia Southern 
University for the City of Statesboro/ Georgia Southern University Fab Lab and 
Innovation Center. 

 

12. Consideration of a Motion to authorize the Mayor and City Manager  to execute an 
engineering services contract with Hussey, Gay, Bell and DeYoung to complete the 
design of and bidding of sewer line segments 4 and 5 as shown in the Cawana, Railroad 
Bed and Burkhalter Road Area Water and Sewer Extension Master Plan with a budget of 
$450,000.00 which includes Engineering, Construction and Contingencies Water and 
Sewer has $1,400,000.00 in CIP for water and sewer extensions in this area. 

 
13. Update to Mayor and Council regarding L&D Produce 
 
14. Other Business from City Council 

 
A) A Work Session scheduled  for August 5, 2014 regarding the proposed changes to 

Chapter 6 (Alcohol Ordinance) for the Code of Ordinances of the City of Statesboro 

B) Update on the internal investigation directed by Judge Keith Barber 

 
15. Public Comments (General) 

A) Bill Thomas to speak with Council regarding water bills, billing practices, collection 
practices and cut off policy. 
 

16. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Real Estate” and  
“Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 

17. Consideration of a Motion to approve a real estate contract. 
 

18. Consideration of a motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Service Delivery Strategy 
Amendment. 
 

19. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 

July 1, 2014 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on July 1st, 2014 at 9:00 a.m. in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Phil 
Boyum, John Riggs, Gary Lewis and Travis Chance.  Also present were Interim City Manager 
Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling, and Director of Community Development Mandi 
Cody. Absent were Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt and City Attorney Alvin Leaphart. 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Jan Moore.  
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was given by Councilman Travis Chance. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to appoint Robert Cheshire as City Manager on an interim basis 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to appoint Robert Cheshire 
as City Manager on an interim basis. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
Bill Thomas spoke on item 5 (a) of the agenda regarding the Called Council Minutes. His 
remarks were regarding the firing of Frank Parker as City Manager. He stated it was shameful as 
Council destroyed Mr. Parker’s character and fired him publicly. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 06-17-2014 Council Minutes 
b) 06-24-2014 Called Council Minutes 
c) 06-24-2014 Executive Session Minutes 
d) Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2014-20: A Resolution  

authorizing a   lease agreement between the Mayor and City Council of 
Statesboro and Cakes, LLC. 

e) Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2014-21: A Resolution 
    authorizing subordination agreement between the Mayor and City Council  
    of Statesboro and Cakes, LLC. 

 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 



 
 

Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2014-24: A Resolution for the closures of 
the remainder of Crescent Circle and a portion of N. Crescent. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve Resolution 
2014-24: A Resolution for the closures of the remainder of Crescent Circle and a portion of N. 
Crescent. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution 2014-22: A Resolution accepting the right 
of way of American Way as a public street to be owned and maintained by the City of 
Statesboro. 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to adopt Resolution 2014-
22: A Resolution accepting the right of way of American Way as a public street to be owned and 
maintained by the City of Statesboro. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2014-23: A Resolution authorizing a 
contract with Ogeechee Technical College for the use of certain equipment in courses of 
study in firefighting and emergency services. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve Resolution 
2014-23: A Resolution authorizing a contract with Ogeechee Technical College for the use of 
certain equipment in courses of study in firefighting and emergency services. Councilman 
Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 
vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve a Professional Engineering Services Contract with 
Parker Engineering in the amount of $35,000 to provide planning, design, and bidding 
services for Improvements to Savannah Ave. between E. Main St. and Gentilly Rd. 
 Funding for services to come from 2007 SPLOST funds 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to  approve a Professional 
Engineering Services Contract with Parker Engineering in the amount of $35,000 to provide 
planning, design, and bidding services for Improvements to Savannah Ave. between E. Main St. 
and Gentilly Rd. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. 
The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve award of Contract to Y-Delta, Inc. in the amount of 
$22,194.09 for repairs to the four (4) brick paver crosswalks located at the Intersection of 
W. Main St. @ S. College St.  
 
Councilman Lewis made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to award of Contract to Y-
Delta, Inc. in the amount of $22,194.09 for repairs to the four (4) brick paver crosswalks located 
at the Intersection of W. Main St. @ S. College St. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 



 
 

 
 
Consideration of a Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Service Delivery Strategy 
Amendment 
 
Mayor Moore removed this item from the agenda.  No date was given to be brought back to 
Council. 
 
Other Business from City Council 

A) Update on the Fit by ’15 Health and Wellness Challenge 
 
Director of Human Resource Jeff Grant gave an update on the Fit by ’15 program. He also 
recognized Flavia Starling for her work putting the program together. 
 
Public Comments (General) 
Bill Thomas request to speak to Council 
 
Mr. Thomas continued his remarks regarding the firing of Frank Parker and his beliefs on the 
wrong doing by the Mayor and Councilmembers. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to adjourn. Councilman 
Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 
vote. 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:35 am. 
 
  









 

 
City of Statesboro – Department of Planning and  Development  

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

P.O. Box 348     » (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia   30458  » (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

V 14-06-01 

VARIANCE REQUEST 

349 Brampton Ave 

LOCATION: 349 Brampton Ave 

 

REQUEST: 

Variance from Article X of the Statesboro 

Zoning Ordinance to reduce the required side 

yard building setback and the minimum 

distance required between buildings to allow 

the construction of a retail shop to be 

attached to the recently permitted building 

separated by a property line. 

APPLICANT: Polestar Development, LLC 

OWNER(S): Polestar GA (Altama), LLC 

LAND AREA: 9.931 acres 

PARCEL TAX  

MAP #s: 
MS74000198A007 

COUNCIL        

DISTRICT:            
District 5 (Chance)  

   

 

PROPOSAL: 

The applicant is requesting a variance from Article X, of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance to reduce the side yard 

setback from the required 15’ to 0’ and reduce the required minimum distance between buildings from 20’ to 0’ so that 
attached retailed spaces may be developed across a shared property line (upon the subdivision of the 9.931 acre) site. 
(See Exhibit A – Location Map, Exhibit C – Conceptual Site Plan) 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The subject site is currently zoned CR (Commercial Retail) and fronts Brampton Avenue and Merchant Way, with 
access to Highway 67/Fair Road through Archway Drive. There is no zoning change history on this property.

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES/ZONING: 

 ZONING: LAND USE: 

NORTH: Commercial Retail Commercial Retail; office; food service 

SOUTH: Planned Unit Development/  

Commercial Retail 

Commercial Retail; office; food service 

EAST: Commercial Retail Commercial Retail; office; food service 

WEST Commercial Retail Commercial Retail; office; food service 



 

Page 2 of 8 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 14-06-01 

Amended July 9, 2014 

 

The subject property is located within a planned commercial development and is surrounded by mixed uses including 
restaurants, shopping centers, offices and health care providers.  High density and mixed residential uses are across 
Highway 67 from the subject site. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

The subject site is located within the Activity Center / Regional Center character area as identified by the 2009 City of 
Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan Future Land Development Map. The Plan states that this character area “will 
evolve into pedestrian-oriented shopping, office, and entertainment places.” Small, mid-size, and regional retail 
commercial, including big box stores, are identified as appropriate land uses for this character area. Adopted 
development strategies for this character area include inter-parcel connectivity, especially along major thoroughfares, 
and encourage land uses that are suitable for the immediately surrounding area. It also states that parking in this 
area should be evaluated to encourage shared parking provisions. 

The Comprehensive Plan also encourages infill development and the recruitment of quality commercial retail 

opportunities to Statesboro and adopts a 2009 Economic Development policy of accommodating economic 
development opportunities while protecting existing assets.  

 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES (EXCEPT TRANSPORTATION): 

The subject site is currently serviced by city utilities including water and sewer, sanitation, and public safety services.   

 

ENVIRONMENTAL: 

The subject property does contain wetlands, but is not located in a special flood hazard area.  Any potential issues 
related to such can be resolved during the standard permitting processes. 

 

ANALYSIS: 

The subject site is zoned CR (Commercial Retail). Therefore, the use and development of the land is governed (in part) 
by Article X of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance. Because the applicant is requesting this variance based on results of 
the proposed subdivision, we must also analyze the affect this request would have on the Subdivision Regulations. 
Sections 1003 (D) and (E) of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance require that a minimum side yard of 15 feet be 
established between each structure on the property and the side property line; and, additionally that buildings within a 
commercial development, if separated, shall not be less than 20 feet apart. The applicant is seeking to build a multi-
tenant attached commercial retail shopping center with a property line to be platted between the major anchor tenant 
and the companion retail places. Parking and landscaping would also be divided by the proposed property line - See 
Exhibit C Concept. 
 
Other considerations from the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance include the requirements of Section 1601(A) which 
requires a minimum setback of three feet (3) from the property line for all parking facilities and Section1601 (E)(2) which 
provides for joint parking arrangements and contemplates this type of design by simply requiring the involved parcels 
commit their agreement in writing and that such writing be filed with the City of Statesboro and in the real estate records 
of Bulloch County. A twenty percent (20%) reduction in required minimum parking spaces is also allowed where inter- 
parcel access is provided and shared parking arrangements demonstrate adequate numbers for the affected uses. Joint 
parking is encouraged in this area by the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Another consideration is Section 4.4 of the Statesboro Subdivision Ordinance which requires that "all lots shall abut a 
public right of way for a minimum length of thirty (30) feet. If this variance request is granted, one of the parcels 
proposed by the concept in Exhibit C would be landlocked from a public right of way and would, therefore, violate the 
ordinance. However, access to a public right of way from the proposed parcel could be achieved by one of two means. 
First, the governing body could require that the proposed lot take public access to Fair Road through the improvement 
and dedication of Archway Drive to the City of Statesboro as a public right of way. Alternatively, Council could require 
the platting and recording of cross-access easements to the proposed parcel either across the adjacent property to 
Brampton Avenue, and/or require access to Fair Road through cross access easements at Archway Drive (a private 
street).  
 
(Note: Although Applicant is requesting variance from Section 1003 (E), the staff finds that this request is not needed) 

 
 



 

Page 3 of 8 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 14-06-01 

Amended July 9, 2014 

 

Section 1801 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance lists the following four (4) factors that the Mayor and Council 
[could] consider to be true in its consideration of a variance request: 

 
(1) There are special conditions pertaining to the land or structure in question because of its size, 

shape, topography, or other physical characteristic and that condition is not common to other 
land or buildings in the general vicinity or in the same zoning district; 

 There are no special conditions pertaining to the land or structure in question because of its 
size, shape, topography, or other physical characteristic that is not common to other land or 
buildings in the general vicinity or the same zoning district. 
 

(2) The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 

 The application for consideration is the result of the actions of the applicant. 
 

(3) The application of the ordinance to this particular piece of property would create an 
unnecessary hardship; and  

 Application of the ordinance to this particular piece of property would not create an 
unnecessary hardship in terms of land use and ordinance application. 

 
(4) Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the 

purposes and intent of the zoning regulations. 

 Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good nor would it impair 
the purposes and intent of the zoning regulations. Each consideration of the Statesboro Zoning 
Ordinance considered herein may be addressed through proper life safety arrangements and 
building codes (setback and building separation variance request); appropriate parking 
arrangements (which are permitted by the Code); and appropriate provision of access to the 
proposed parcel (the three alternatives explained above). 

 A grant of relief of this application would serve the vision of the 2009 Statesboro 
Comprehensive Master Plan, its development strategies, and policies. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff has taken comments and concerns expressed at the Planning Commission meeting into consideration and has 
recommended approval of the requested variance with the following conditions: 
 

1. This variance regarding side yard setbacks and building separation shall apply only as shown for 
internal lot lines as illustrated on the concept in Exhibit C to provide for a singular attached retail 
development. Variances shall not apply to adjacent properties not participating as an applicant in this 
case. 
 

2. Public access to the proposed parcel shall be granted through Council’s requirement of one of the 
following options: 
a. Archway Drive must be improved to City standards and dedicated to the City of Statesboro as a 

public right of way; or 
b. A cross-access easement must be platted and filed for recording in the real estate records. 

 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

Planning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the variance requested by this application with the following 
condition: 

1. Archway Drive must be improved to City standards and dedicated to the City of Statesboro as a public right of 
way. 

 

 

(Please note: Unless otherwise stated in any formal motion by City Council, staff considers the conceptual site plan 
(Exhibit C) submitted on behalf of the applicant for this request to be illustrative only.  Approval of the application does 
not constitute approval of any final building or site plan). 

 

 



 

Page 4 of 8 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 14-06-01 

Amended July 9, 2014 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A: LOCATION MAP 

 



 

Page 5 of 8 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 14-06-01 

Amended July 9, 2014 

 

EXHIBIT B: PLAT 

 



 

Page 6 of 8 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 14-06-01 

Amended July 9, 2014 

 

 

EXHIBIT C: CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 

 

 



 

Page 7 of 8 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 14-06-01 

Amended July 9, 2014 

 

 
 
EXHIBIT D: PHOTOS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY  
 
 

Figure 1: South Western View of Subject Site from Brampton Avenue. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Figure 2: Eastern View of Subject Site 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 8 of 8 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 14-06-01 

Amended July 9, 2014 

 

 
 
EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 
 

Figure 3: Directly across from Subject Site 
 

 
 
 
Figure 4: Adjoining Properties to the West of Subject Site. 
 

 



Ben
Typewritten Text
ARCH WAY

Ben
Typewritten Text
BRAMPTON AVE

Ben
Callout
PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

Ben
Callout
PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

Ben
Callout
Variance requested to allow a property line between the Grocery Store and Shops

































Memorandum of Understanding 

 

This memorandum of understanding agreement executed this __________ day of July, 2014 by and 
between the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau and the City of Statesboro, GA. 

Whereas, the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau is an existing entity that provides assistance to 
visitors to the Statesboro area and the Georgia Southern Museum, a part of Georgia Southern 
University, a part of the University System of Georgia, provides varied educational programs to the 
Statesboro area and offering design and programming functions to this Statesboro Convention and 
Visitors Bureau facility. Both entities shall offer services in accordance with all federal, state and local 
regulations; and,  

Whereas, the City of Statesboro is actively engaged in assisting the Statesboro Convention and Visitors 
Bureau in obtaining grant funding to enhance existing visitor services and local historical educational 
opportunities in the Statesboro, GA area. 

Whereas, Section 1-2 of the Charter of the City of Statesboro provides that the Mayor and City Council 
can receive, possess and retain to themselves and their successors in office, for the use and benefit of 
the City of Statesboro, in perpetuity or for any term of years, any estate or estates, real or provisional, of 
every kind and nature, inside or outside the corporate limits for corporate purposes. 

      WITNESSETH 

NOW, THEREFORE, for mutual consideration set forth herein, the parties contract and agree to as 
follows: 

The Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau located on South Main Street, Statesboro, GA 30458 
agrees to use the $20,000 or amount granted, along with the renovated building (Old Shoney’s) valued 
at approximately $500,000 (land and renovated building) and any other gifts in kind to promote visitor 
services and historical education of the Statesboro, GA area. This includes, but not limited to various 
forms of promotion for visitor information and an in-house museum to showcase local Statesboro 
history and culture provided by the Georgia Southern Museum. These museum exhibits shall rotate 
quarterly and or yearly as to the theme presented.  

The City shall retain the grant portion of this project ($20,000 or amount awarded) until the completed 
project is approved, in writing, by the Georgia Department of Economic Development Tourism Division 
and Georgia Council for the Arts. 

The City of Statesboro will assist the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau in administering and 
navigating the grant process to the successful completion of this project. 

This memorandum has been drafted and shall be interpreted under the State of Georgia laws should any 
disagreement arise. 



The parties agree that this package shall be recognized as a binding agreement between the two parties 
with responsibilities required as listed for the successful completion of this project located in the City of 
Statesboro, GA. 

Should any statute by the Georgia General Assembly or any ruling of any court prohibit the continuation 
of this grant, both parties shall be relieved of the responsibilities of this agreement and it shall become 
null and void. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, both parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of Understanding on the 
day and year written above. 

 

On behalf of the City of Statesboro 

 

Mayor Jan J. Moore  _____________________ 

City of Statesboro 

 

City Clerk Sue Starling  _____________________ 

City of Statesboro 

 

On Behalf of the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau 

Heidi Jeffers, Director SCVB ______________________ 

 



Resolution  2014-25 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Statesboro shall partner with the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau in 
the pursuit of a Tourism Product Development Agreement Grant. 

WHEREAS, the City of Statesboro is authorized to hold the grant funds for dispersal per Section 1-2 of 
the Charter of the City of Statesboro. 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau desires grant funds to establish a detailed 
exhibition portion of the new Visitors Center to promote Statesboro area history and culture in 
collaboration with the Georgia Southern Museum. 

WHEREAS, the Georgia Department of Economic Development is currently accepting applications for a 
Tourism Product Development Agreement Grant. 

NOW THEREFOR, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Statesboro, GA on behalf of the Statesboro 
Convention and Visitors Bureau hereby authorizes the Mayor to make application for said grant and 
pledges its assistance in the grant administration process. 

 

 

Resolved this ________ day of July, 2014 

 

Mayor Jan J. Moore, City of Statesboro    ____________________________ 

 

City Clerk, Sue Starling, City of Statesboro  ____________________________ 





 
 
 
 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

Robert Cheshire, P.E., Interim City Manager 
 
FR: Mandi Cody, Director Planning & Development 
 
RE: L&D Produce 
 
Date: July 9, 2014 
 
On March 18, 2014 the Statesboro City Council voted 5-0 in approval of a motion “for the completion of the project 
in its entirety in 120 days from today, including the permit that will supposedly be issued by GDOT for the drive 
way cut” for L&D Produce located on Highway 80 East. The time extension for this grant expires July 17, 2014. 
 
To date, minimum requirements have not been met for L&D Produce to secure a building permit, certificate of 
occupancy, nor an occupational tax certificate (commonly referred to as a business license), in violation of City 
ordinances.  The establishment remains in business on Highway 80.  The staff gives this update and requests 
direction as to next steps. 
 
Important dates/events regarding this issue, include the following: 
 
April 2, 2013 Council approved 4-0 “the six (6) month trial basis for the sale of produce and yard sales” 

on the vacant lot across from Lowes on Highway 80 East upon the request of David 
Gerald of L&D Produce.  

 
October 10, 2013 Right Start Meeting 
 
October 15, 2013   Council voted to “approve extension of a temporary business license for another three (3) 

months to L&D Produce.”  Motion carried by 4-0 vote on “condition that the Planning & 
Development Department sets progressive deadlines, at intervals to be completed no later 
than February 15, 2014.” 

 
October 17, 2013  Letter mailed notifying applicant of deadline with required intervals as follows: 

• November 1, 2013: Building permit application to be submitted.  Interval met 
• December 1, 2013: All necessary requirements for the building permit must be 

complete.  Interval not met. 
• February 15, 2014:  All necessary improvements must be complete, certificate 

occupancy and a business license must be obtained.  Interval not met. 
 
November 13, 2013   Building permit application submitted. 
 
November 22, 2013  Building permit review completed and letter issued to applicant detailing necessary 

information and improvements.  Letter was sent via email and US mail. 
 
February 18, 2014  Staff report to Council regarding L&D’s failure to comply. 
 
March 18, 2014    Council approved 120 day extension to complete all requirements. 
 
July 17, 2014  120 day expiration date. 

50 East Main Street  P.O. Box 348  » (912) 764-0630 
Statesboro, Georgia 30458 Statesboro, Georgia 30459 » (912) 
764 0664 (F ) 

 City of Statesboro 
Department of Planning & Development Memorandum 


	07-15-2014 Council Agenda
	07-01-2014 Council minutes
	07-2014 JON STARKEY outdoor event
	07-2014 V14-06-01 Staff Report_AMENDED
	07-2014 V-14-06-01 Map Applicant Graphic
	07-2014 CNG Front Load Refuse Truck Pricing Extensions (1)
	07-2014 HGBD PRofessional Engineering
	07-2014 MOU --Visitors Ctr Grant
	07-2014-25 Resolution Visitors Ctr Grant
	07-2014 DABC GSU OTC
	07-2014 L& D Produce 07-09-14



